
   
Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA  

DECEMBER 8, 2022 – 3:00 P.M.  
 
 

Teleconference/Public Participation Information 
 
This meeting will be held exclusively via teleconference participation of a quorum of Board 
members in locations not open to the public in compliance with Assembly Bill (“AB”) 361 
(Rivas, Chapter 165, Statutes of 2021) and its amendments to California Public Resources Code 
Section 54953(e), allowing for deviation of teleconference and physical location meeting rules 
otherwise required by the Ralph M. Brown Act. This meeting is being held during a proclaimed 
state of emergency, and state and local officials have imposed or recommended measures to 
promote social distancing, while allowing the public to observe and address the Board. 
 
For this meeting, there will be no physical location from which members of the public may 
observe the meeting. Instead: 
 
 Members of the public are welcome to submit written comments via email to the Board 

Secretary at Authority@RecycleSmart.org prior or during the time for public comment at the 
meeting. The Board Secretary will share all comments with the Board at the meeting and 
make them part of the public record.  

 
 Members of the public are also welcome to observe and address the Board telephonically, at 

the appropriate time for public comment during the meeting, following these instructions: 
 
Link to join Webinar:   https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85332589396 
 
Or iPhone one-tap:   1-669-900-6833 or 1-408-638-0968  

 
Webinar ID:  853 3258 9396 
 

During the meeting, the Chair will call for public comment. If you wish to address the Board, 
please so indicate at that time and the Chair will add you to the speaker list and call your name 
when it is your turn. 

 
Note: To improve everyone’s opportunity to participate, please mute your computer or 
phone until you are called to speak. 

 

1850 Mt. Diablo Blvd., Ste. 320 
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 
 
Telephone:  925.906.1801 Fax:  925.906.1805 
Email:  authority@recyclesmart.org 
Website:  www.recyclesmart.org 
Facebook:  www.facebook.com/CCCSWA 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85332589396
mailto:authority@recyclesmart.org
http://www.recyclesmart.org/
http://www.facebook.com/CCCSWA


Page 2 of 3 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, California Law, and the Governor’s 
Executive Orders, it is the policy of the Central Contra Costa Solid Waste Authority to offer its 
public meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to everyone, including those with 
disabilities. Any individual with a disability may request reasonable modifications or 
accommodations so that they may observe and address the Board at this teleconference meeting. 
If you are disabled and require special accommodations to participate, please contact the Board 
Secretary at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting at Authority@RecycleSmart.org with the 
following information: name, phone number, email, and type of assistance requested. 

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THIS AGENDA

When addressing the Board, please state your name, company and/or address for the
record. There is a three-minute limit to present your information. (The Board Chair may 
direct questions to any member of the audience as appropriate at any time during the 
meeting.) 

3. WELCOME NEW EMPLOYEE, MARY (GRACE) COMAS, SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

4. CONSENT ITEMS

All items listed in the Consent Calendar may be acted upon in one motion.  However, any 
item may be removed from the Consent Calendar by request by a member of the Board, 
public, or staff, and considered separately. 

a. Approve Minutes of the CCCSWA Board Meeting on October 27, 2022*
b. Approve Minutes of the CCCSWA Board Meeting on November 16, 2022*
c. Approve 2023 CCCSWA Board of Directors Meeting Schedule*
d. Adopt Resolution 2022-15, approving continued use of teleconferencing for the

meetings of all CCCSWA legislative bodies under Assembly Bill 361*

5. PRESENTATIONS

a. Solid Waste Collection Rates for Rate Year 9
Erik Nylund, Crowe LLP

6. ACTION ITEMS

a. Second Amendment to Republic Services Franchise Agreement*
Approve the Second Amendment to Agreement Between Central Contra Costa Solid
Waste Authority and Allied Waste Systems, Inc. for Franchised Materials Collection,
Transfer, Transport, Processing, Diversion, and Disposal Services.

mailto:Authority@RecycleSmart.org


   
Page 3 of 3 

b. Amendment to Contract with HF&H Consultants for Interim Executive Director 
Services*  
Authorize the CCCSWA Board Chair to enter an Amendment to the Professional 
Services Agreement with HF&H Consultants, LLC to provide Executive Director 
transition services. 
 

c. SB 1383 Memo of Understanding (MOU) with County, and First Reading of 
Ordinance 22-1, Amending Ordinance 16-1—Administrative Citations and Other 
Remedies* 
1. Approve an MOU with the County of Contra Costa, including accepting $60,000 

in one-time SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program funds from the County, and  
2. Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance 22-1, amending Ordinance 16-1, 

Administrative Citations and Other Remedies: waive full reading thereof; 
schedule second reading/adoption of the Ordinance at the next regular Board 
meeting on January 26, 2023; and direct agency legal counsel to prepare a 
summary for publication as required by law.  

 
7. INFORMATION ITEMS 

 
These reports are provided for information only.  No Board action is required.  

 
a. Executive Director’s Monthly Report* 
b. Future Agenda Items* 

 
 

8. FAREWELL TO BOARD MEMBERS KAREN MITCHOFF AND AMY WORTH 
 

a. Adopt Proclamation for CCCSWA Board Member Karen Mitchoff* 
b. Adopt Proclamation for CCCSWA Board Member Amy Worth* 

 
9. BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
*Corresponding Agenda Report or Attachment is included in this Board packet. 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

ADDRESSING THE BOARD ON AN ITEM ON THE AGENDA 
Persons wishing to speak on PUBLIC HEARINGS and OTHER MATTERS listed on the agenda will be heard when the Chair calls for comments from the 
audience, except on public hearing items previously heard and closed to public comment.  The Chair may specify the number of minutes each person will be 
permitted to speak based on the number of persons wishing to speak and the time available.  After the public has commented, the item is closed to further public 
comment and brought to the Board for discussion and action.  There is no further comment permitted from the audience unless invited by the Board. 
 

ADDRESSING THE BOARD ON AN ITEM NOT ON THE AGENDA 
In accordance with State law, the Board is prohibited from discussing items not calendared on the agenda.  For that reason, members of the public wishing to 
discuss or present a matter to the Board other than a matter which is on the Agenda are requested to present the matter in writing to RecycleSmart Board 
Secretary at least one week prior to a regularly scheduled Board meeting date.  If you are unable to do this, you may make an announcement to the Board of your 
concern under PUBLIC COMMENTS.  Matters brought up which are not on the agenda may be referred to staff for action or calendared on a future agenda.
   
 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
In accordance with the Americans With Disabilities Act and California Law, it is the policy of the Central Contra Costa Solid Waste Authority dba 
RecycleSmart to offer its public meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to everyone, including those with disabilities. If you are disabled and require 
special accommodations to participate, please contact RecycleSmart Board Secretary at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting at (925) 906-1801. 

 

























































































































Agenda Item No. 6c  

Page 1 of 2 
12/08/2022 BOD Meeting    

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
TO:  

 
CCCSWA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: JUDITH SILVER, SENIOR PROGRAM MANAGER 
JEN FAUGHT, CONTRACT COMPLIANCE SPECIALIST 

DATE: DECEMBER 8, 2022 

SUBJECT: 
SB 1383 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH COUNTY, AND 
FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 22-1, AMENDING ORDINANCE 16-1, 
ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND OTHER REMEDIES  

 
SUMMARY  
 
To comply with SB 1383, RecycleSmart adopted Ordinance 21-1, the Mandatory Organic Waste 
Disposal Reduction Ordinance. The County, as the only RecycleSmart member agency with area 
outside the RecycleSmart jurisdiction, also adopted its own County-wide SB 1383 Ordinance. To 
clarify roles and responsibilities related to SB 1383 compliance and enforcement in portions of the 
County within RecycleSmart’s service area, the County requested that RecycleSmart enter into a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  
 
Under the MOU, the County requests that RecycleSmart enforce RecycleSmart’s Ordinance 21-1 in 
portions of unincorporated County within RecycleSmart’s service area, consistent with 
RecycleSmart’s role for all other member agencies. Proposed Ordinance 22-1 would amend 
RecycleSmart Ordinance 16-1, the Administrative Citations and Other Remedies Ordinance, to 
confirm RecycleSmart’s enforcement authority in such portions of the unincorporated County. 
 
The MOU confirms RecycleSmart’s role in the portions of unincorporated County within 
RecycleSmart’s service area is consistent with RecycleSmart’s role for all other member agencies. 
This consistency reinforces the agency’s role in SB 1383 implementation and our ability to serve all 
our rate payers efficiently and equally.   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

1. Approve an MOU with the County of Contra Costa, including accepting $60,000 in one-time 
SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program funds from the County (Attachment A), and  

2. Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance 22-1, amending Ordinance 16-1, Administrative 
Citations and Other Remedies (Attachment B).; waive full reading thereof; schedule second 
reading/adoption of the Ordinance at the next regular Board meeting on January 26, 2023; and 
direct agency legal counsel to prepare a summary for publication as required by law.  

 
 
 

Agenda Report 



Agenda Item No. 6c  

Page 2 of 2 
12/08/2022 BOD Meeting    

DISCUSSION  
 
To comply with SB 1383, RecycleSmart adopted Ordinance 21-1, the Mandatory Organic Waste 
Disposal Reduction Ordinance.  
 
The County is the only RecycleSmart member agency with territory outside the RecycleSmart service 
area. The County adopted its own County-wide SB 1383 ordinance (County Ordinance 2021-38, 
adding Chapter 418-20 to the County Code), which includes areas outside the RecycleSmart service 
area where the County is directly responsible for SB 1383 implementation and compliance. 
Notwithstanding its County-wide ordinance, the County requests that RecycleSmart implement and 
enforce RecycleSmart’s Ordinance 21-1 in portions of the County within RecycleSmart’s service 
area, similar to RecycleSmart’s role for all other member agencies.  
 
At the County’s request, staff of both agencies negotiated a MOU to clarify roles and responsibilities 
related to SB 1383 compliance and enforcement in the unincorporated portions of the County that are 
within the RecycleSmart service area (Attachment A). The MOU describes responsibilities regarding 
elements of SB 1383 such as record keeping, capacity planning, and enforcement. The County has 
also been working with the West Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management Authority, 
(RecycleMore) to negotiate a similar MOU for those portions of the County within RecycleMore’s 
jurisdiction. 
 
The County, along with all the other RecycleSmart member agencies, applied for and received one-
time SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Program funds from CalRecycle. Like the other member 
agencies, the County agreed to provide RecycleSmart a portion of its grant funds to support 
RecycleSmart’s SB 1383 work plan for programs such as route monitoring, edible food generator 
monitoring and enforcement planning. The MOU describes the amount of funds available from the 
County, the approved uses of the funds, and RecycleSmart’s reporting responsibilities to the County.  
 
RecycleSmart’s Ordinance, 16-1, Administrative Citations and Other Remedies, currently excludes 
the County areas from RecycleSmart’s enforcement authority, and therefore must be amended. Staff 
is submitting, for introduction, Ordinance 22-1 (Attachment B), which would amend Ordinance 16-1. 
The only difference between the two versions is to confirm RecycleSmart’s ability to enforce 
RecycleSmart’s Ordinance 21-1 (Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal Reduction Ordinance) in the 
portion of unincorporated Contra Costa County within RecycleSmart’s service area, beginning 
January 1, 2024. Second reading/adoption of Ordinance 22-1, amending Ordinance 16-1, will be 
scheduled for the next regular Board meeting on January 26, 2023. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Memorandum of Understanding between Contra Costa County and CCCSWA and its 
Exhibits   

B. Ordinance 22-1, amending Ordinance 16-1 Administrative Citations and Other 
Remedies (strikethrough text showing proposed changes to current Ordinance 16-1) 

 

 



























'l?t,t'-� - !lj {/jjif:-' '. /1• -' 
ts 

L 

CCCSWA/RecycleSmart Unincorporated 

Areas Not Permitted by the County 

D City Limits 

D StateArea 

di 

a county 

--, 

/ 

0
----====--------Miles 

0 1_25 2.5 5 

• Population numbers from 2010 Census Data• 

Exhibit A: CCCSWA/RecycleSmart 

Unincorporated Area 

D� 

0anville 

MopCrHtodl/25f.?022 
boJ Conb'o Co,t:i County Dopar1mont of 

Conurvollon ond Dovolopmont, GIS Group 
30 Muir Rood, Mottlno:r, CA 9-4553 
37:59;41.791N 122:07:0J,756W 

)
"' 

�r 

('7 _,,, 

"--

" 

7/ ' "' 
4,i .. 

.. �, - -,," 

�,... 

·( ifi � 
'5.0,._ 

:i "'"o '-l>o,--._ 

��-'9-,, 

"z 
z, 

<:: 1! 

! --.,,-\-_I

l 
,,_____/ 

,,.-
,/ 

CPstCl count)'

contra
;:;-------1 

Alarrieda countY

\ 

ffl�Ol-J> 
>< r, ca 
:::r - ID 
;:, ?: =-· .... a. 
,... DI DI 

� g. ::; 
3 ID 
ID 3 

az 
� !) 

Thil fflllP -· cr .. i..i 111 II•• Conll• COWi co .... tv °"•-tol COffWfYIIIOn Ind 
Ow.Jo,,.,.111...,, HII tlOffl tJ,- Co!ltta Co.ta Countr CIS PfO!!raffl. Some 

1111 .. dau, p,ima,lfll Cq, Li•nn, la.S.rNlld ''°"' 11W CASla .. Bolld ol Eq111WDon•1. 
lnra11arua.WNt.1111i;gai.aio11u11111mc,111eeounty1M1.1m.1no1HpoM .. lttylot 

II IDCUllql. Thia map ......... •"Pl"qlllad l,'lfo,rnallon Incl ""'f not H darecl. ltr111y h 
,.produud In Ila r:u111nl llala I Ill• &GIIIU la <ii.cl. u ..... °' "'' ff\lP 11)111 IO raid and 

�-i>tl'l•Countyl/lCont,-Co.UOG!tda-fOfl•Dlli1VI01Q•OQ,.pMcWllorm.ton. 





































































































































Agenda Item No. 7b 

I 
art 

Future Agenda Items 

Central Contra Costa Solid Waste Authority 

C A rove 12/8/2022 Board Meetin Minutes 

C Adopt Resolution 2023-01, Continued use of Teleconferencing for all 
CCCSWA meetin s under AB 361 

A 

A 

I 

p 

Ado tion of Solid Waste Collection Rates for Rate Year 9 

Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 22-1, Amending Ordinance 
16-1, Administrative Citations and Other Remedies

Strategic Plannin /Goal Settin 

C A rove 01/26/2023 Board Meetin Minutes 

C Adopt Resolution 2023-02, Continued use of Teleconferencing for all 
CCCSWA meetin s under AB 361 

C Receive Fiscal Year 2021-22 Financial Statements and Auditors' Re ort 

C 

I 

p AB 939 Annual Diversion Re mi and SB 1383 Im lementation Plan 

Elect Chair and Vice Chair for 2023-24 

A 

A 

A 

TYPE 

C - Consent Item 

A - Action Item 

I - Infonnation Item 

P - Presentation 

12/08/2022 BOD Meeting 

Page 1 of 1 












	Agenda
	Item 4a
	Item 4b
	Item 4c
	Item 4d
	Item 4d_Attach A 
	Item 6a
	Item 6a_Attach A
	Item 6a_Attach B
	Item 6b
	Item 6b_Attach A
	Item 6b_Attach B
	Item 6c
	Item 6c_Attach A
	Item 6c_Exhibit A
	Item 6c_Exhibit B 
	Item 6c_Attach B
	Item 7a
	Item 7a_Attach A 
	Item 7b
	Item 8a
	Item 8b
	Agenda.pdf
	d. Adopt Resolution 2022-15, approving continued use of teleconferencing for the meetings of all CCCSWA legislative bodies under Assembly Bill 361*
	Approve the Second Amendment to Agreement Between Central Contra Costa Solid Waste Authority and Allied Waste Systems, Inc. for Franchised Materials Collection, Transfer, Transport, Processing, Diversion, and Disposal Services.




